



## MINISTRY OF MINES AND ENERGY

## Request for Proposal

Issued on: 19 May 2023

for

## **Selection of Consultant for**

PROVISION OF CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR PRELIMINARY DESIGN, DETAILED DESIGN, DOCUMENTATION, CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND SITE SUPERVISION FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A ROOF-TOP SOLAR PV SYSTEM AT THE MINISTRY OF MINES AND ENERGY HEADQUARTERS.

Procurement Reference No: [CS/RP/15-02/2023]

**Project:** CONSULTING SERVICES

Client: Ministry of Mines and Energy

Interested eligible bidders may obtain further information from Ministry of Mines and Energy Procurement Management Unit – Ground floor, Block F1, 6 Aviation Road for enquiries Email: ProcurementManagement@mme.gov.na





## Contents

Section 1: Letter of Invitation	- 3 -
Section 2. Instructions to Consultants	- 5 -
Section 2 (b): Instructions to Consultants – Data Sheet	26
Section 3. Technical Proposal - Standard Forms	33 -
Section 3. Form TECH-1: Technical Proposal Submission Form	34 -
Section 5. Terms of Reference	47 -
Section 6. Standard Contract – Time Based	54 -

## **Section 1: Letter of Invitation**

Section 1. Letter of invitation	D
Procurement Reference No: CS/RP/15-02/2023	Date:
Name and Address of Consultant:	
Dear Sir/Madam	
The Ministry of Mines and Energy invites proposals to provide the follow services ( <b>Provision of consultancy services for preliminary design, det documentation, contract administration and site supervision for the intop solar pv system at the ministry of Mines and Energy headquarter.</b> More details on the services are provided in the Terms of Reference.	tailed design, nstallation of a roof-
<ol> <li>A firm will be selected under The Request for Proposal Method and protein this RFP, in accordance with the policies and procedures for public Republic of Namibia.</li> </ol>	
3. The RFP includes the following documents:	
Section 1 - Letter of Invitation Section 2 - Instructions to Consultants (including Data Sheet) Section 3 - Technical Proposal - Standard Forms Section 4 - Financial Proposal - Standard Forms Section 5 - Terms of Reference Section 6 - Standard Form of Contract	
4. Please inform us in writing at the following address <i>Ministry of Mines Private Bag 13297 Windhoek</i> 6 Aviation Road <i>Eros Airport Road</i>	7
(a) that you received the Letter of Invitation; and (b) whether you will submit a proposal alone or in association	
Yours sincerely,  Nathaniel Musenge  Procurement Head and Secretary to the Procurement Committee	
LEMENT MANAGME!	

## **Table of Contents**

De	finitions
1.	Introduction2
	Fraud and Corruption5
	Eligibility
	Eligibility of Sub-Consultants
	Origin of Goods and Consulting Services
	Only one Proposal
	Proposal Validity
2.	Clarification and Amendment of RFP Documents
	Technical Proposal Format and Content
	Financial Proposals
	Taxes
4.	Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposals
5.	Proposal Evaluation
	Evaluation of Technical Proposals
	Financial Proposals for QBS
	Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals (only for QCBS, FBS, and LCS) 16
6.	Negotiations
	Technical negotiations
	Financial negotiations
	Availability of Professional staff/experts
	Conclusion of the negotiations
7.	Award of Contract
8.	Confidentiality
9.	Debriefing 20

## **Section 1: Letter of Invitation**

Procurement I	Reference No: CS/RP/15-02/2023	Date:
Name and Ad	ldress of Consultant:	
•••••	•••••	
Dear Sir/Mada	am	
services (Prov documentation top solar pv s	of Mines and Energy invites proposals to provision of consultancy services for preliminon, contract administration and site supercystem at the ministry of Mines and Energy on the services are provided in the Terms of	nary design, detailed design, evision for the installation of a roof- gy headquarters.
this RFP,	l be selected under The Request for Proposa in accordance with the policies and proce of Namibia.	al Method and procedures described in edures for public procurement in the
3. The RFP i	ncludes the following documents:	
Section Section Section Section	n 1 - Letter of Invitation n 2 - Instructions to Consultants (including l n 3 - Technical Proposal - Standard Forms n 4 - Financial Proposal - Standard Forms n 5 - Terms of Reference n 6 - Standard Form of Contract	Data Sheet)
4. Please info (a) (b)	Wi. 6 A	ivate Bag 13297 ndhoek viation Road s Airport Road, upon receipt: and
Yours sincere	ly,	
Nathaniel Mu Procurement	senge Head and Secretary to the Procurement Con	nmittee

## **Table of Contents**

D	efinitions	4
	efinitions	
1.	Introduction	2
	Fraud and Corruption	. 5
	Eligibility	. 6
	Eligibility of Sub-Consultants	. 7
	Origin of Goods and Consulting Services	. 7
	Only one Proposal	. 7
	Proposal Validity	7
2.	Clarification and Amendment of RFP Documents	8
	Technical Proposal Format and Content	11
	Financial Proposals	14
	Taxes	4
4.	Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposals	14
5.	Proposal Evaluation	15
	Evaluation of Technical Proposals	16
	Financial Proposals for QBS	16
	Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals (only for QCBS, FBS, and LCS) 1	6
6.	Negotiations	7
	Technical negotiations	7
	Financial negotiations	8
	Availability of Professional staff/experts	8
	Conclusion of the negotiations	9
7.	Award of Contract	
8.	Confidentiality	9
9.	Debriefing2	0

### Section 2. Instructions to Consultants

**Definitions** (a) "Client" means the Public Entity with which the selected Consultant signs the Contract for the Services.

- (b) "Consultant" means any entity or person that may provide or provides the Services to the Client under the Contract.
- (c) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties and all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1 that is the General Conditions (GC), the Special Conditions (SC), and the Appendices.
- (d) "Data Sheet" means such part of the Instructions to Consultants used to reflect specific country and assignment conditions.
- (e) "Day" means calendar day.
- (f) "Government" means the government of the Republic of Namibia.
- (g) "Instructions to Consultants" (Section 2 of the RFP) means the document which provides shortlisted Consultants with all information needed to prepare their Proposals.
- (h) "LOI" (Section 1 of the RFP) means the Letter of Invitation being sent by the Client to the shortlisted Consultants.
- (i) "Personnel" means professionals and support staff provided by the Consultant or by any Sub-Consultant and assigned to perform the Services or any part thereof; "Foreign Personnel" means such professionals and support staff who at the time of being so provided had their domicile outside the Republic of Namibia; "Local Personnel" means such professionals and support staff who at the time of being so provided had their domicile in the Republic of Namibia.
- (j) "Proposal" means the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal.
- (k) "RFP" means the Request For Proposal to be prepared by the Client for the selection of Consultants.
- (1) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to the Contract.
- (m) "Sub-Consultant" means any person or entity with whom the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services.

- (n) "Terms of Reference" (TOR) means the document included in the RFP as Section 5 which explains the objectives, scope of work, activities, tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the Client and the Consultant, and expected results and deliverables of the assignment.
- 1. Introduction 1.1 The Client named in the Data Sheet will select a consulting firm/organization (the Consultant) from those listed in the Letter of Invitation, in accordance with the Method of selection specified in the Data Sheet.
- 1.2 The shortlisted Consultants are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, or a Technical Proposal only, as specified in the **Data Sheet**, for consulting services required for the assignment named in the **Data Sheet**. The Proposal will be the basis for contract negotiations and ultimately for a signed Contract with the selected Consultant.
- 1.3 Consultants should familiarize themselves with local conditions and take them into account in preparing their Proposals. To obtain first-hand information on the assignment and local conditions, Consultants are encouraged to visit the Client before submitting a proposal and to attend a preproposal conference if one is specified in the **Data Sheet**. Attending the pre-proposal conference is optional.

Consultants should contact the Client's representative named in the **Data Sheet** to arrange for their visit or to obtain additional information on the pre-proposal conference. Consultants should ensure that these officials are advised of the visit in adequate time to allow them to make appropriate arrangements.

- 1.4 The Client will timely provide at no cost to the Consultants the inputs and facilities specified in the **Data Sheet**, assist the firm in obtaining licenses and permits needed to carry out the services, and make available relevant project data and reports.
- 1.5 Consultants shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their proposals and contract negotiation. The Client is not bound to accept any proposal, and reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the Consultants.

# Conflict of 1.6 The Government of the Republic of Namibia requires that Interest Consultants provide professional objective

Consultants provide professional, objective, and impartial advice and at all times hold the client's interests paramount, strictly avoid conflicts with other assignments or their own corporate interests and act without any consideration for future work.

1.6.1 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, Consultants, and any of their affiliates, shall be considered to have a conflict of interest and shall not be recruited, under any of the circumstances set forth below:

# Conflicting activities

A firm that has been engaged by the client to (i) provide goods, works or services other than consulting services for a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services related to those goods, works or services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, and any of its disqualified be from affiliates. shall subsequently providing goods or works or services other than consulting services resulting from or directly related to the firm's consulting services for such preparation implementation. For the purpose of this paragraph, services other than consulting services are defined as those leading to a measurable physical output, for example

exploratory

photography, and satellite imagery.

surveys,

drilling,

aerial

#### **Conflicting assignments**

A Consultant (including its Personnel and (ii) SubConsultants) or any of its affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment of the Consultant to be executed for the same or for another Client. For example, a Consultant hired prepare engineering design for an infrastructure project shall not be engaged to prepare independent environmental assessment for the same project, and a Consultant assisting a Client in the privatization of public assets shall not purchase, nor advise purchasers of, such assets. Similarly, Consultant hired to prepare Terms of Reference for an assignment should not be hired for the assignment in question.

(iii) A Consultant (including its Personnel and Sub-

#### Conflicting

#### relationships

Consultants) that has a business or family relationship with a member of the Client's staff who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference of the assignment, (ii) the selection process for such assignment, or (iii) supervision of the Contract, shall not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Client throughout the selection process and the execution of the Contract.

- 1.6.2 Consultants have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of their Client, or that may reasonably be perceived as having this effect.

  Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- No agency or current employees of the Client shall 1.6.3 work as Consultants under their own ministries. departments agencies. Recruiting former government employees of the Client to work for their former ministries, departments or agencies acceptable provided no conflict of interest exists. When the Consultant nominates any government employee as Personnel in their technical proposal, such Personnel must have written certification from their government or employer confirming that they are on leave without pay from their official position and allowed to work full-time outside of their previous official position. Such certification shall be provided to the Client by the Consultant as part of his technical proposal.

#### Unfair Advantage

1.6.4

If a shortlisted Consultant could derive a competitive advantage for having provided consulting services related to the assignment in question, the Client shall make available to all shortlisted Consultants together with this RFP all information that would in that respect give such Consultant any competitive advantage over competing Consultants.

Fraud and
1.7 It is the policy of the Government of Namibia to require Public
Corruption Entities, as well as consultants and their agents (whether declared or not),
personnel, sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers
and suppliers observe the highest standard of ethics during the
selection and execution of contracts. In pursuance of this policy,
the Client:

- (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
  - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party<sup>2</sup>;
  - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation<sup>3</sup>;
  - (iii) "collusive practices" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party<sup>4</sup>;
  - (iv) "coercive practices" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly,

<sup>1</sup> In this context, any action taken by a consultant or a sub-consultant to influence the selection process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> "Another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the selection process or contract execution. In this context "public official" includes Public Entity staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing selection decisions.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> A "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the selection process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the selection process or contract execution.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> "Parties" refers to participants in the procurement or selection process (including public officials) attempting to establish contract prices at artificial, non-competitive levels.

any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party<sup>5</sup>;

- (v) "obstructive practice" is
  - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede the Client's investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
  - (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Client's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.7.1 below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the consultant recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will sanction a firm or an individual at any time, in accordance with prevailing procedures, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a public contract, and (ii) to be a nominated sub-consultant, sub-contractor, supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a public contract.
  - 1.7.1. In further pursuance of this policy, Consultants shall permit the Client to inspect their accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of proposals and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Client.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> "Party" refers to a participant in the selection process or contract execution.

1.7.2 Consultants shall furnish information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents relating to this proposal and during execution of the assignment if the Consultant is awarded the Contract, as requested in the Financial Proposal submission form (Section 4).

#### **Eligibility**

- 1.8 (a) A firm or individual that has been sanctioned by the Government of the Republic of Namibia in accordance with the above clause 1.7 shall be ineligible to be awarded a public contract, or benefit from a public contract during such period of time as determined by the Review Panel.
  - (b)A consultant that is under a declaration of ineligibility by the Government of Namibia in accordance with applicable laws at the date of the deadline for bid submission and thereafter shall be disqualified.
  - (c)Proposal from consultants appearing on the ineligibility lists of African Development Bank, Asian Development Bank, European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, InterAmerican Development Bank Group and World Bank Group shall be rejected.

Links for checking the ineligibility lists are available on the Procurement Policy Unit's website: <a href="https://www.mof.gov.na/procurement-policy-unit">www.mof.gov.na/procurement-policy-unit</a>.

(d) Furthermore, the Consultants shall be aware of the provisions on fraud and corruption stated in the specific clauses in the General Conditions of Contract and as outlined under section 66 – 68 of the Public procurement Act, 2015.

# Eligibility of Sub-Consultants

1.9

In case a shortlisted Consultant intends to associate with Consultants who have not been shortlisted and/or individual expert(s), such other Consultants and/or individual expert(s) shall be subject to the eligibility policy of the Client.

#### Origin of Goods 1.10 and Consulting Services

Goods supplied and Consulting Services provided under the Contract may originate from any country except if:

- (i) as a matter of law or official regulation, the Republic of Namibia prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
- (ii) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Republic of Namibia prohibits any imports of goods from that country or any payments to persons or entities in that country.

# Only one Proposal

1.11

1.12

2.1

Shortlisted Consultants shall submit only one proposal. If a Consultant submits or participates in more than one proposal, such proposals shall be disqualified. However, this does not limit the participation of the same Sub-Consultant, including individual experts, to only one proposal.

# Proposal Validity

The **Data Sheet** indicates how long Consultants' Proposals must remain valid after the submission date. During this period, Consultants shall maintain the availability of Professional staff nominated in the Proposal. The Client will

make its best effort to complete negotiations within this period. However should the need arise, the Client may request Consultants to extend the validity period of their proposals. Consultants who agree to such extension shall confirm that they maintain the availability of the Professional staff nominated in the Proposal, or, in their confirmation of extension of validity of the Proposal, Consultants could submit new staff in replacement, who would be considered in the final evaluation for contract award. Consultants who do not agree have the right to refuse to extend the validity of their Proposals.

#### 2. Clarification and Amendment of RFP Documents

Consultants may request a clarification of any of the RFP documents up to the number of days indicated in the **Data Sheet** before the proposal submission date. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing, or by standard electronic means to the Client's address indicated in the **Data Sheet**. The Client will respond in writing, or by standard electronic means and will send written copies of the response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying the source of inquiry) to all Consultants. Should the Client deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under para. 2.2.

- At any time before the submission of Proposals, the Client may amend the RFP by issuing an addendum in writing or by standard electronic means. The addendum shall be sent to all Consultants and will be binding on them. Consultants shall acknowledge receipt of all amendments. To give Consultants reasonable time in which to take an amendment into account in their Proposals the Client may, if the amendment is substantial, extend the deadline for the submission of Proposals.
- 3.2 In preparing their Proposal, Consultants are expected to examine in detail the documents comprising the RFP. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested may result in rejection of a Proposal.
- 3.3 While preparing the Technical Proposal, Consultants must give particular attention to the following:
- (a) If a shortlisted Consultant considers that it may enhance its expertise for the assignment by associating with other Consultants in a joint venture or subconsultancy, it may associate with either (a) non-shortlisted Consultant(s), or (b) shortlisted Consultants if so indicated in the **Data Sheet**. A shortlisted Consultant must first obtain the approval of the Client if it wishes to enter into a joint venture with non-shortlisted or shortlisted Consultant(s). In case of association with non-shortlisted Consultant(s), the shortlisted Consultant shall act as association leader. In case of a joint venture, all partners shall be jointly and severally liable and shall indicate who will act as the leader of the joint venture.
- (b) The estimated number of Professional staff-months or the budget for executing the assignment shall be shown in the **Data Sheet**, but not both. However, the Proposal shall be based on the number of Professional staff-months or budget estimated by the Consultants.

For fixed-budget-based assignments, the available budget is given in the **Data Sheet**, and the Financial Proposal shall not exceed this budget, while the estimated number of Professional staff-months shall not be disclosed.

- (c) Alternative professional staff shall not be proposed, and only one curriculum vitae (CV) may be submitted for each position.
- (d) Documents to be issued by the Consultants as part of this assignment must be in English. It is desirable that the firm's Personnel have a working knowledge of English.

#### (e) Bid Security

- (i) The Bidder shall either furnish as part of its bid, a Bid Security or subscribe to a Bid Securing Declaration in the Bid Submission Form as specified in the BDS.
- (ii) The Bid Securing Declaration shall be in the form of a signed subscription in the Bid Submission Form.
- (iii) The Bid Security shall be in the amount/percentage specified in the BDS and denominated in Namibian dollars, and shall:
  - (a) be issued by a commercial bank operating in Namibia.
  - (b) be substantially in accordance with the forms of Bid Security included in Section 3, Technical Proposal Standard Forms;
  - be payable promptly upon written demand by the Purchaser in case the conditions listed in ITB Clause 3.3(e)(vi) are invoked;
  - (d) be submitted in its original form; copies will not be accepted;
  - (e) remain valid for a period of 30 days beyond the validity period of the bids, as extended, if applicable, in accordance with ITB Clause 1.12;
- (iv)Any bid not accompanied by an enforceable and substantially compliant Bid Security or not containing a subscription to a Bid Securing Declaration in the Bid Submission Form, if required, in accordance with ITB 3.4(h), shall be rejected by the Purchaser as nonresponsive.
- (v) The Bid Security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder signing of contract.
- (vi) The Bid Security shall be forfeited or the Bid Securing Declaration executed:
  - if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Technical Proposal Submission Form; or
  - (b) if a Bidder refuses to accept a correction of an error appearing on the face of the Bid; or

- (c) if the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 6.5;
- (i) The Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration of a Joint Venture (JV) must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid. If the

JV has not been legally constituted at the time of bidding, the Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the Technical Proposal Submission Form mentioned in Section 3 "Technical Proposal Standard Forms," when submitting in association.

- (ii) If a bid securing declaration is required in the BDS, and
  - (a) a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Technical Proposal Submission Form, except as provided in ITB 20.2;
  - (b) a Bidder refuses to accept a correction of an error appearing on the face of the Bid; or
  - (c) the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 6.5;

the bidder may be disqualified by the Review Panel to be awarded a contract by any Public Entity for a period of time

#### Technical Proposal Format and Content

3.4 Depending on the nature of the assignment, Consultants are required to submit a Full Technical Proposal (FTP), or a Simplified Technical Proposal (STP). The **Data Sheet** indicates the format of the Technical Proposal to be submitted. Submission of the wrong type of Technical Proposal will result in the Proposal being deemed nonresponsive. The following mandatory documentary evidence is required to accompany the Technical Proposal;

- (i) have a valid company Registration Certificate;
- (ii) have an original valid good Standing Tax Certificate;
- (iii) have an original valid good Standing Social Security Certificate;
- (iv) have a valid certified copy of Affirmative Action Compliance Certificate, proof from Employment Equity Commissioner that bidder is not a relevant

- employer, or exemption issued in terms of Section 42 of the Affirmative Action Act, 1998;
- (v) An undertaking on the part of the Bidder that the salaries and wages payable to its personnel in respect of this proposal are compliant to the relevant laws, Remuneration Order, and Award, where applicable and that it will abide to sub-clause 4.6 of the General conditions of Contract if it is awarded the contract or part thereof; and;

The Technical Proposal shall provide the information indicated in the following paragraphs from (a) to (g) using the attached Standard Forms (Section 3). Paragraph (c) (ii) indicates the recommended number of pages for the description of the approach, methodology and work plan of the STP. A page is considered to be one printed side of A4 or letter size paper.

- For the FTP only: a brief description of the (a) Consultants' organization and an outline of recent experience of the Consultants and, in the case of joint venture, for each partner, on assignments of a similar nature is required in Form TECH-2 of Section 3. For each assignment, the outline should indicate the names of Sub-Consultants/Professional staff who participated, duration of the assignment, contract amount, and Consultant's involvement. Information should be provided only for those assignments for which the Consultant was legally contracted by the Client as a corporation or as one of the major firms within a joint venture. Assignments completed by individual Professional staff working privately or through other consulting firms cannot be claimed as the experience of the Consultant, or that of the Consultant's associates, but can be claimed by the
  - Professional staff themselves in their CVs. Consultants should be prepared to substantiate the claimed experience if so requested by the Client.
  - (ii) For the STP the above information is not required and Form TECH-2 of Section 3 shall not be used.

- (b) (i) For the FTP only: comments and suggestions on the Terms of Reference including workable suggestions that could improve the quality/ effectiveness of the assignment; and on requirements for counterpart staff and facilities including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc. to be provided by the Client (Form TECH-3 of Section 3).
  - (ii) For the STP Form TECH-3 of Section 3 shall not be used; the above comments and suggestions, if any, should be incorporated into the description of the approach and methodology (refer to following sub-para. 3.4 (c) (ii)).
- (c) (i) For the FTP, and STP: a description of the approach, methodology and work plan for performing the assignment covering the following subjects: technical approach and methodology, work plan, and organization and staffing schedule. Guidance on the content of this section of the Technical Proposals is provided under Form TECH-4 of Section 3. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule (Form TECH-8 of Section 3) which will show in the form of a bar chart the timing proposed for each activity.
- (ii) For the STP only: the description of the approach, Methodology and work plan should normally consist of 10 pages, including charts, diagrams, and comments and suggestions, if any, on Terms of Reference and counterpart staff and facilities.
  - (d) The list of the proposed Professional staff team by area of expertise, the position that would be assigned to each staff team member, and their tasks (Form TECH-5 of Section 3).
  - (e) Estimates of the staff input (staff-months of foreign and local professionals) needed to carry out the assignment (Form TECH-7 of Section 3). The staff months input should be indicated separately for home office and field activities, and for foreign and local Professional staff.

- (f) CVs of the Professional staff signed by the staff themselves or by the authorized representative of the Professional Staff (Form TECH-6 of Section 3).
- (g) For the FTP only: a detailed description of the proposed Methodology and staffing for training, if the Data Sheet specifies training as a specific component of the assignment.
- (h) the Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITB Clause 3.3(e), as specified in the **Data Sheet**:
- 3.5 The Technical Proposal shall **not** include any financial information. A Technical Proposal containing financial information may be declared non responsive.

# Financial Proposals

3.6 The Financial Proposal shall be prepared using the attached Standard Forms (Section 4). It shall list all costs associated with the assignment, including (a) remuneration for staff (foreign and local, in the field and at the Consultants' home office), and (b) reimbursable expenses indicated in the **Data Sheet**. If appropriate, these costs should be broken down by activity and, if appropriate, into foreign and local expenditures. All activities and items described in the Technical Proposal must be priced separately; activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.

#### Taxes

- The Consultant, other than Namibian nationals, may be subject to local taxes (such as: value added tax, social charges or income taxes on non-resident Foreign Personnel, duties, fees, levies) on amounts payable by the Client under the Contract. The Client will state in the **Data Sheet** if the Consultant is subject to payment of any local taxes. Any such amounts shall not be included in the Financial Proposal as they will not be evaluated, but they will be discussed at contract negotiations, and applicable amounts will be included in the Contract.
- 3.8 Consultants, must express the price of their services in Namibia Dollars only.
- Commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid by Consultants and related to the assignment will be listed in the Financial Proposal Form FIN-1 of Section 4.

#### 4. Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposals

- 4.1 The original proposal (Technical Proposal and, if required, Financial Proposal; see para. 1.2) shall contain no interlineations or overwriting, except as necessary to correct errors made by the Consultants themselves. The person who signed the proposal must initial such corrections. Submission letters for both Technical and Financial Proposals should respectively be in the format of TECH-1 of Section 3, and FIN-1 of Section 4.
- 4.2 An authorized representative of the Consultants, as **specified** in the Data Sheet shall initial all pages of the original Technical and Financial Proposals. The signed Technical and Financial Proposals shall be marked "ORIGINAL".
- 4.3 The Technical Proposal shall be marked "ORIGINAL" or "COPY" as appropriate. The Technical Proposals shall be sent to the addresses referred to in paragraph. 4.5 and in the number of copies indicated in the **Data Sheet**. All required copies of the Technical Proposal are to be made from the original. If there is any discrepancy between the original and the copies of the Technical Proposal, the original governs.
- The original and all copies of the Technical Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" Similarly, the original Financial Proposal (if required under the selection Method indicated in the Data Sheet) shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" followed by the Procurement reference number and the name of the assignment, and with a warning "Do NOT OPEN WITH THE TECHNICAL"

PROPOSAL." The envelopes containing the Technical and Financial Proposals shall be placed into an outer envelope and sealed. This outer envelope shall bear the submission address and reference number, and be clearly marked "Do Not Open, EXCEPT IN PRESENCE OF THE OFFICIAL APPOINTED,

BEFORE [insert the time and date of the submission deadline indicated in the Data Sheet]". The Client shall not be responsible for misplacement, loss or premature opening if the outer envelope is not sealed and/or marked as stipulated. This circumstance may be case for Proposal rejection. If the Financial Proposal is not submitted in a separate sealed envelope duly marked as indicated above, this will constitute grounds for declaring the Proposal non-responsive.

- 4.5 The Proposals must be sent to the address/addresses indicated in the **Data Sheet** and received by the Client no later than the time and the date indicated in the **Data Sheet**, or any extension to this date in accordance with para. 2.2. Any proposal received by the Client after the deadline for submission shall be returned unopened.
- 4.6 The Client shall open the Technical Proposal immediately after the deadline for their submission. The envelopes with the Financial Proposal shall remain sealed and securely stored.

# 5. Proposal Evaluation

5.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the Consultants should not contact the Client on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Any effort by Consultants to influence the Client in the examination, evaluation, ranking of Proposals, and recommendation for award of Contract may result in the rejection of the Consultants' Proposal.

Evaluators of Technical Proposals shall have no access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded.

# Evaluation of Technical Proposals

5.2

5.3

The Evaluation Committee shall evaluate the Technical Proposals on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified in the **Data Sheet**. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the RFP, and particularly the Terms of Reference or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the **Data Sheet**.

#### Financial Proposals for QBS

Following the ranking of technical Proposals, when selection is based on quality only (QBS), the first ranked Consultant is invited to negotiate its proposal and the Contract in accordance with the instructions given under para. 6 of these Instructions.

Public Opening 5.4 and Evaluation of Financial Proposals (only for QCBS, FBS, and LCS)

After the technical evaluation is completed the Client shall inform the Consultants who have submitted proposals the technical scores obtained by their Technical Proposals, and shall notify those Consultants whose Proposals did not meet the minimum qualifying mark or were considered non responsive to the RFP and TOR, that their Financial Proposals will be returned unopened after completing the selection process. The Client shall simultaneously notify in writing Consultants that have secured the minimum qualifying mark, the date, time and location for opening the Financial Proposals. The opening date should allow Consultants sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the opening. Consultants' attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional.

- 5.5 Financial Proposals shall be opened in the presence of the Consultants' representatives who choose to attend. The name of the consultants and the technical scores of the consultants shall be read aloud. The Financial Proposal of the Consultants who meet the minimum qualifying mark will then be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals shall be then opened, and the total prices read aloud and recorded. Copy of the record shall be sent to all Consultants, upon request.
- The Client will correct any computational error. When 5.6 correcting computational errors, in case of discrepancy between a partial amount and the total amount, or between word and figures the formers will prevail. In addition to the above corrections, as indicated under para. 3.6, activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items. In case an activity or line item is quantified in the Financial Proposal differently from the Technical Proposal the Evaluation Committee shall correct the quantification indicated in the Financial Proposal so as to make it consistent with that indicated in the Technical Proposal, apply the relevant unit price included in the Financial Proposal to the corrected quantity and correct the total Proposal cost. Prices shall indicated in Namibia Dollars
- 5.7 In case of QCBS, the lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) will be given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores (Sf) of the other Financial Proposals will be computed as indicated in the **Data Sheet**. Proposals will be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial

(Sf) scores using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; T + P = 1) indicated in the **Data Sheet**:  $S = St \times T\% + Sf \times P\%$ . The firm achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be invited for negotiations.

5.8 In the case of Fixed-Budget Selection, the Client will select the firm that submitted the highest ranked Technical Proposal within the budget. Proposals that exceed the indicated budget will be rejected. In the case of the Least-Cost Selection, the Client will select the lowest proposal among those that passed the minimum technical score. In both cases the evaluated proposal price according to para. 5.6 shall be considered, and the selected firm is invited for negotiations.

#### 6. Negotiations

6.1 Negotiations will be held on the date and at the address indicated in the **Data Sheet**. The invited Consultant will, as a pre-requisite for attendance at the negotiations, confirm availability of all Professional staff. Failure in satisfying such requirements may result in the Client proceeding to negotiate with the next-ranked Consultant. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the Consultant must have written authority to negotiate and conclude a Contract.

# Technical negotiations

6.2 Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical

Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, and organization and staffing, and any suggestions made by the Consultant to improve the Terms of Reference. The Client and the Consultants will finalize the Terms of Reference, staffing schedule, work schedule, logistics, and reporting. These documents will then be incorporated in the Contract as "Description of Services". Special attention will be paid to clearly defining the inputs and facilities required from the Client to ensure satisfactory implementation of the assignment. The Client shall prepare minutes of negotiations which will be signed by the Client and the Consultant.

# Financial negotiations

6.3

If applicable, it is the responsibility of the Consultant, before starting financial negotiations, to contact the local tax authorities to determine the local tax amount to be paid by the Consultant under the Contract. The financial negotiations will include a clarification (if any) of the firm's tax liability in the Republic of Namibia, and the manner in which it will be reflected in the Contract; and will reflect the agreed technical modifications in the cost of the services. In case of Quality and Cost Based Selection, Fixed-Budget Selection, or the Least-Cost Selection methods, unless there are exceptional reasons, the financial negotiations will involve neither the remuneration rates for staff nor other proposed unit rates. For other methods, Consultants will provide the Client with the information on remuneration rates described in the Appendix attached to Section 4 - Financial Proposal - Standard Forms of this RFP.

# Availability of Professional staff/experts

6.4

Having selected the Consultant on the basis of, among other things, an evaluation of proposed Professional staff, the Client expects to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the Professional staff named in the Proposal. Before contract negotiations, the Client will require assurances that the Professional staff will be actually available. The Client will not consider substitutions during contract negotiations unless both parties agree that undue delay in the selection process makes such substitution unavoidable or for reasons such as death or medical incapacity. If this is not the case and if it is established that Professional staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, the Consultant may be disqualified. Any proposed substitute shall have equivalent or better qualifications and experience than the original candidate and shall be submitted by the Consultant within the period of time specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate.

# Conclusion of the 6.5 negotiations

Negotiations will conclude with a review of the draft Contract. To complete negotiations the Client and the Consultant will initial the Contract. If negotiations fail, the Client will invite the Consultant whose Proposal received the second highest score to negotiate a Contract.

#### 7. Award of Contract 7.1

- The Consultant whose bid attains the highest score, in accordance with the criteria and selection method set forth in the request for proposals, or the one with the least cost in the case of the Least Cost method of selection, shall be selected for award, subject to satisfactory conclusion of negotiation.
- 7.2 For contract above the prescribed threshold, the Client shall notify the selected Consultant of its intention to award the contract and shall simultaneously notify all other short listed consultants of its decision.
- 7.3 For contracts not exceeding the prescribed threshold, the client shall issue the Letter of Award.
- 7.4 In the absence of an application for review by any other consultant within 7 days of the notice under section 7.2, the contract shall be awarded to the selected Consultant.
- 7.5 Within seven days from the issue of Letter of Award, the Client shall publish on the Public Procurement Portal <a href="https://www.mof.gov.na/procurement-policy-unit">www.mof.gov.na/procurement-policy-unit</a>) and the Client's website, the results of the RFP process identifying the:
  - (i) name of the successful Consultant, and the price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the assignment; and
  - (ii) an executive summary of the RFP Evaluation Report, for contracts above the prescribed threshold referred to in section 7.2.
- 7.6 After Contract signature, the Client shall return the unopened Financial Proposals to the unsuccessful Consultants.
- 7.7 The Consultant is expected to commence the assignment on the date and at the location specified in the **Data Sheet**.

#### 8. Confidentiality

8.1 Information relating to evaluation of Proposals and recommendations concerning awards shall not be disclosed to the Consultants who submitted the Proposals or to other persons not officially concerned with the process until the publication of the award. The undue use by any Consultant of confidential information related to the process may result in the rejection of its Proposal and may be subject to the provisions of the Government's antifraud and corruption policy.

9. Debriefing 9.1 The client shall promptly attend to all requests for debriefing for the contract made in writing, and within 7 days from the date the unsuccessful consultants are informed about the award.

# Section 2 (b): Instructions to Consultants – Data Sheet

Paragraph Reference		
1.1	Name of the Client: Ministry of Mines and Energy	
1.2	Financial Proposal to be submitted together with Technical Proposal: N/A  Name of the assignment is: Provision of Consultancy Services for Preliminary Design, Detailed Design, Documentation, Contract Administration and Site Supervision for the Installation of a Roof-Top Solar PV System at the Ministry of Mines and Energy Headquarters	
1.3	A pre-bid meeting: N/A	
1.4	The Client will provide the following inputs and facilities: <b>N/A</b> The Client shall provide available information on request and such request is to be communicated in writing to PMU E-Mail_Address:  ProcurementManagement@mme.gov.na	
1.6.1	The Client envisages the need for continuity for downstream work: N/A	
1.14	Proposals must remain valid 180 days after the submission date.	

2.1	Clarifications may be requested not later than 14days before the submission date.  The address for requesting clarifications is:		
	Procurement Management Unit Ministry of Mines and Energy 6 Aviation Road Windhoek		
	Email: ProcurementManagement@mme.gov.na		
3.3 (a)	Shortlisted Consultants may associate with other shortlisted Consultants: N/A		
3.3 (b)	The estimated number of professional staff-months required for the assignment is: Thirty-Six (36) Calendar Months inclusive of construction period with a possibility for an extension.		

3.4	The format of the Technical Proposal to be submitted is: STP
3.4 (g)	Training is a specific component of this assignment: No
3.4 (h)	Bid security shall not be required.

3.6	<ol> <li>Cost of necessary travel, including transportation of the Personnel by the most appropriate means of transport and the most direct practicable route;</li> <li>Cost of printing and dispatching of the reports to be produced for the Services;</li> <li>Cost of such further items required for purposes of the Services not covered in the foregoing.</li> </ol>		
3.7	Amounts payable by the Client to the Consultant under the contract to be subject to local taxation: Yes		
4.2	written evidence is required.  Note: The power of Attorney or other written authorization to sign may be for a determined period or limited to a specific purpose.		
4.3	Consultant must submit <b>one original</b> <i>plus</i> <b>one copy</b> of the Technical Proposal. Failure to comply shall results in an automatic disqualification.		
4.5	The Proposal submission address is: Procurement Management Unit Ministry of Mines and Energy 6 Aviation Road Windhoek Proposals must be submitted:  Date: 20 June 2023  Time: 10h00  Bid opening will be done immediately after closing.		

5.2	Criteria, sub criteria, and point system for the evaluation of Simplified Technical Proposals are:		
	Poin	<u>ıts</u>	
	(i) Specific experience of the Bidder relevant to the assignment:  Bidder must have successfully completed a minimum of 3 similar projects (Solar Plant projects) with a minimum value of N\$ 4 million and size of 200kWp in the last 5 years (Reference Letters must be attached). Bidders that do not meet the above requirement will be disqualified.	[15]	
	(ii) Existence of the Bidder within the industry:  Bidder (firm) must be in existence / trading, i.e. registered with Engineering  Council of Namibia (ECN) and Association of Consulting Engineering  (ACEN). Bidders must attach proof.	[5]	
	(iii) Adequacy of the proposed methodology and work plan in responding to the Terms of Reference:		
	<ul> <li>a) Technical approach and methodology (refer to ITC 3.6)</li> <li>b) Work plan (Refer to ITC 3.6)</li> <li>c) Organization and staffing</li> <li>d) Adequacy of Training Program in solar installation and designs</li> </ul> Total points for criterion (iii):	20 5 5 5 [35]	
	Tour point of the control (m).		

	(iv) Key professional staff qualifications and competence for the assignment:	
	a) Project Leader/Engineer	20
	- Must be a fully and active registered an Electrical Engineer with ECN as an Incorporated or Professional Engineer with minimum 7 years' experience in Solar photovoltaic industry with additional Solar trainings (such as solar sizing, installations, Solar simulation Software) from an accredited institution (Proof must be attached). Attach proof that the Engineer is currently active registered with ECN, failure will lead to disqualification.	
	- Must have sound knowledge of medium-large scale On-grid Solar PV projects and net-metering (Previous experience).	
	b) Project Civil/Structural Engineer	15
	- Must be fully and active registered with ECN as an Incorporated or Professional Engineer with minimum 5 years' experience. Attach proof that the Engineer is currently active registered with ECN, failure will lead to disqualification	
	- Must have sound knowledge of in structural designs and existing infrastructure assessments.	
	c) Project Mechanical Engineer	10
	- Must be fully and active registered with ECN as an Incorporated or Professional Engineer with minimum 5 years' experience. Attach proof that the Engineer is currently active registered with ECN, failure will lead to disqualification.	
	- Must have sound knowledge in systemic ventilations (Attach CV)	
	Total points for criterion (iv):	[45]
	Total points for the five criteria:	[100]
***	The minimum Technical Score required to pass is:	80%
6.1	Expected date and address for contract negotiations: N/A	
7.5	Expected date for commencement of consulting services After acceptance letter is received: 30 Days	

## Section 2(c): Instructions to Consultants - Evaluation Criteria

This section contains supplementary criteria that the employer shall use to evaluate bids.

#### 1. Evaluation

- (a) This bid is reserved for Namibian registered entities with 100% shareholding vesting in Namibian citizens as required in terms of Section 29 (a) "to the citizens of Namibia" of the Public Procurement Act, 2015 (Act No. 15 of 2015).
- **(b)** Bidders should provide proof of citizenship, certified by Namibian police for all shareholders.
- (c) In the case of Joint Venture (JV), both parties to the JV must comply with the requirement in (a) and should provide proof as required in (b) above.

In addition to the criteria listed above, the following criteria shall apply.

#### 1.1: Administrative Compliance

#	DESCRIPTION		
"		Yes	No
	Bidder submitted Written statement by a power of attorney		
4	(or notary statement, etc.) proving that the person, who		
1	signed the bid on behalf of the company/joint		
	venture/consortium, is duly authorized to		
	do so; (BDS Sub-clause 4.2 and ITC Sub-clause 4.2)		
	Bidder has submitted the duly filled in, signed, and		
2	dated the Technical Proposal Submission		
	Form;(TECH-1) (Please submit the entire bidding document		
_	as provided by the Ministry except documents to be		
	submitted with the financial proposal in the separate sealed		
	envelope)		
	Original and all copies of the bid are typed or written in		
3	indelible ink and signed by a person		
	duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder (ITS		
	Sub-clause 4.2);		
4	Bid is written in English language (ITC Clause 3.3 d);		
	OVERALL ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE		

## 1.2: Legal Compliance

	DESCRIPTION			
		Yes	No	
	Does bidder meet the requirement of Section 29 (a) "to the citizen of Namibia" of the Public Procurement act, 2015 (Act No.15 of 2015)			
1	Bidder has provided valid proof of citizenship, certified by the Namibian police or Commissioner of Oath for all shareholders. In the case of Joint Ventures, each party to the JV are Namibian citizens and have provided proof as required above.			
	Bidder has submitted valid certified copy of Namibian Identification Documents of allshareholders:			
2	(Certified by a commissioner of Oath appointed in terms of the Justice of the peace and Commissioners of Oath Act. 1963 (Act No. 16 of 1963)		×	
	Each JV Partner must comply.			
3	Bidder has submitted a Company Registration Certificate/founding statement; (ITC Clause 3.4. a (i)); Bidder must be in existence for not less than 5 years;			
	Each JV Partner must comply.			
4	Bidder has an original valid Good Standing Tax Certificate; (ITC Clause 3.4 .a (ii));			
5	Bidder has an <b>original valid</b> Good Standing Social Security Certificate; (ITC Clause 3.4 a (iii));			
6	Bidder have a <b>valid certified copy</b> of Affirmative Action Compliance Certificate, proof from Employment Equity Commissioner that Bidder is nota relevant employer, or exemption issued in terms of Section 42 of the Affirmative Action Act, 1998; (ITC Clause 3.4 .a (iv));			
7	An Undertaking on the part of the Bidder that the salaries and wages payable to its personnel in respect of this proposal are compliant to the relevant laws, Remuneration Order, and award where applicable and that it will abide to sub-clause 4.6 of the General conditions of contract if it is awarded the contract or apart thereof; and; (ITC Clause 3.4 .a (v));			
8	Bidder has submitted a signed Bid Securing Declaration using the provided format			
9	Bidder has submitted Proof of Registration with Namibian Professional Bodies (ECN, ACEN)			
10	Proof of Solar related trainings (Solar installations, Designs, Solar simulation software) or courses undertaken by the Project Electrical Engineer or Project leader.			
11	Attach proof that the Engineers are currently active registered with ECN,		lt.	
	OVERALL LEGAL COMPLIANCE			

- Failure to submit any one of the above-mentioned documents and references will deem the bidder as non-compliant and will therefore lead to disqualification and exclusion from further evaluation.
- All certified copies must not be older than 6 months. Older copies will lead to disqualifications.

#### 1.3: Technical Evaluation Criteria

(i)	Experience in implementing	g similar projects		Points	
	Specific experience of the Bio	dder relevant to the	≥3 Projects	15	
	assignment (PV System)	•	3 Projects	8	
			≤3 Projects	0	
		Tot	tal Points for Criteria (i)	15	
		Maximu	m Points for Criteria (i):	15	
		Minimu	m Points for Criteria (i):	15	
(ii)	Existence of the Bidder wit	hin the industry		Max. Points	
	Number of years Bidder is tra industry/Establishment	ading within the construction	≥5 years	5	
	•	To	tal Points for Criteria (ii):	5	
		Maximu	m Points for Criteria (ii):	5	
		Minimu	m Points for Criteria (ii):	5	
	Adaguacy of the proposed	methodology and work	<u> </u>	200	
(iii)	Adequacy of the proposed methodology and work plan in responding to the Terms of Reference:			Max. Points	
	a) Technical approach and methodology				
	b) Work plan			5	
	c) Organization and staffing d) Adequacy of Training Program				
			tal Points for Criteria (iii)	35 35	
Maximum Points for Criteria (iii)					
		Minimu	m Points for Criteria (iii)	17.5	
(iv)	Key professional staff qualifications and competence for the assignment:		Score	Percentag weight	
		General Qualifications	Degree 100% Diploma 50%	30%	
	a) Project Leader/Engineer	Relevant and adequate experience for the assignment (PV System)	≥7 years 100% 4 - 6 years 50% <4 years 0%	70%	
	Total Points for Criteria (a)				
Maximum Points for Criteria (a)				20	
		Minimu	um Points for Criteria (a)	10	
(v)	Key professional staff qualifications and competence for the assignment:		Percenta weight		
(v)	competence for the assign	intent.			

	b) Project Civil/S Engineer	Relevant a adequate e for the assi	xperience	≥5 years 3 - 4 years <3 years	100% 50% 0%	70%
			То	tal Points for Cr	iteria (c)	15
	Maximum Points for Criteria (c)					15
	Minimum Points for Criteria (c)				7.5	
(iv)		professional staff qualifications and petence for the assignment:		Percentage weight		
		0 10	General Qualifications  Relevant and adequate experience	Degree	100%	
		General Qu		Diploma	50%	30%
	c) Project Mechanical	nical Relevant ar		≥5 years	100%	70%
	Engineer			3 - 4 years	50%	
		for the assi	gnment	<3 years	0%	
Total Points for Criteria (d)					10	
			Maximu	m Points for Cr	iteria (d)	10
				m Points for Cr m Points for Cr		10 5
					iteria (d)	

A Bidder must for each Criteria score a Minimum of 50% for each Criteria in order to pass such a Criteria. The Minimum pass rate for all Criteria combined is 80 marks.

#### 1.4 Margin of Preference:

The Margin of Preference is applicable to this Request for Bidders is: Preference will only be granted to contractors in terms of the code of good practice issued on 31 January 2023 as per Government Notice No:13 in terms of section 70 and 72 of the Public Procurement Act, 2015 as amended.

The maximum cumulative allowable margin of preference applicable to exclusive preferences for price evaluation purposes is 10%.

MARGINS OF PREFERENCES WHEN EVALUATING BIDS FOR EXCLUSIVE PREFERENCE. See table below.

Category	Margin of preference	Documentary evidence		
Manufacturer	2 percent	-Certificate of registration from a registering authority		
		-Declaration by the bidder that the manufactured goods meet the local content as determined in Annexure 6 as per the cost structure for Value Added Calculation in Annexure 1, and as certified by an Accountant		
MSME	1 percent	-SME registration certificate -Declaration indicating the percentage of Namibian MSME ownership		
Women owned enterprise	1 percent	- IDs of all shareholders -Founding statement/company registration indicating ownership structure/shareholder certificate - declaration indicating the percentage of Namibian female ownership		
Youth owned enterprise	2 percent	- IDs of all shareholders - Founding statement/company registration indicating ownership structure/shareholder certificate - declaration indicating the percentage of Namibian youth ownership		
PDP owned enterprise	2 percent	-IDs of all shareholders - Founding statement/company registration indicating ownership structure/shareholder certificates - declaration indicating the percentage of Namibian PDPs ownership		
Supplier promoting environmental protection	1 percent	-declaration and proof that the bidder meets the requirements set out in the bidding document		
Service rendered by Namibian citizens.	1 percent	-declaration that the bidder employs 50% or more Namibian citizens		
Total	10%			

## Section 3. Technical Proposal - Standard Forms

[Comments in brackets [ ] provide guidance to the shortlisted Consultants for the preparation of their Technical Proposals; they should not appear on the Technical Proposals to be submitted.]

Refer to Reference Paragraph 3.4 of the Data Sheet for format of Technical Proposal to be submitted, and paragraph 3.4 of Section 2 of the RFP for Standard Forms required and number of pages recommended.

Form TECH-1: Technical Proposal Submission Form	26
Form TECH-2: Consultant's Organization and Experience	27
A - Consultant's Organization	27
B - Consultant's Experience	29
Form TECH-3: Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on Counterpart Staff and Facilities to be Provided by the Public Entity	31
A - On the Terms of Reference	31
B - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities	32
Form TECH-4: Description of Approach, Methodology and Work Plan for Performing the Assignment	33
Form TECH-5: Team Composition and Task Assignments	34
Form TECH-6: Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Professional Staff	35
Form TECH-7: Staffing Schedule	

## Section 3. Form TECH-1: Technical Proposal Submission Form

To: Procurement Management Unit Ministry of Mines and Energy Private Bag 13297 Windhoek

We, the undersigned, offer to provide Provision of Consultancy Services for Preliminary Design, Detailed Design, Documentation, Contract Administration and Site Supervision for the Installation of a Roof-Top Solar PV System at the Ministry of Mines and Energy Headquarters in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated as per bid advertisement and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal.

We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and accept that any misinterpretation contained in it may lead to our disqualification.

If negotiations are held during the period of validity of the Proposal, i.e., before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 1.14 of the Data Sheet, we undertake to negotiate on the basis of the proposed staff. Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted, to initiate the consulting services related to the assignment not later than the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 7.5 of the Data Sheet.

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.

We remain,

[Delete in case no association is foreseen.]

Yours sincerely,	
Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:and Title of Signatory:	Name
Name of Firm:	
Address:	
1 [In case Paragraph Reference 1.2 of the Data Sheet requires to submit a Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical sentence with the proposal sentence with the propos	

### Form TECH-2: Consultant's Organization and Experience

#### A - Consultant's Organization

[Provide here a brief description of the background and organization of your firm/entity and each associate for this assignment.]

#### **B** - Consultant's Experience

[Using the format below, provide information on each assignment for which your firm, and each associate for this assignment, was legally contracted either individually as a corporate entity or as one of the major companies within an association, for carrying out consulting services similar to the ones requested under this assignment

#### Consultant to provide only projects undertaken in the last five (5) years

Assignment name:	Approx. value of the contract (in current N\$ equivalent):
Country: Location within country:	Duration of assignment (months):
Name of Client:	Total N° of staff-months of the assignment:
Address:	Approx. value of the services provided by your firm under the contract (in current N\$ equivalent):
Start date (month/year): Completion date (month/year):	N° of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:
Name of associated Consultants, if any:	Name of senior professional staff of your firm involved and functions performed (indicate most significant profiles such as Project Director/Coordinator, Team Leader):
Narrative description of Project:	
Description of actual services provided by your staff w	vithin the assignment:

Firm's Name:

# Form TECH-3: Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on Counterpart Staff and Facilities to be provided by the Client

#### A - On the Terms of Reference

[Present and justify here any modifications or improvement to the Terms of Reference you are proposing to improve performance in carrying out the assignment (such as deleting some activity you consider unnecessary, or adding another, or proposing a different phasing of the activities). Such suggestions should be concise and to the point and incorporated in your Proposal.]

#### **B** - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

[Comment here on counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by the Client according to Paragraph Reference 1.4 of the Data Sheet including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.]

#### 1. Facilities to be provided by the consultant

A consultant has to provide his/her own office accommodation of a reasonable standard, furniture and all working equipment necessary to carry out the field investigations and office administrative work.

#### 2. Facilities to be provided by MME

All documents at Ministry's disposal shall be provided to Consultants.

# Form TECH-4: Description of Approach, methodology and Work Plan for Performing the Assignment: N/A

Section 3 – Technical Proposal – Standard Forms

Form TECH-5: Team Composition and Task Assignments

		 	 			$\overline{}$
Professional Staff	Task Assigned					
	Position Assigned					
	Area of Expertise					
	Firm					×
	Name of Staff					

_	ecion 5 – Technical Proposal – Standard Forms
	Form TECH-6: Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Professional taff
1.	Proposed Position [only one candidate shall be nominated for each position]:
2.	Name of Firm [Insert name of firm proposing the staff]:
3.	Name of Staff [Insert full name]:
4.	Date of Birth:Nationality:
5.	<b>Education</b> [Indicate college/university and other specialized education of staff member, giving names of institutions, degrees obtained, and dates of obtainment]:
6.	Membership of Professional Associations:
7.	Other Training [Indicate significant training since degrees under 5 - Education were obtained]: _
8.	Countries of Work Experience: [List countries where staff has worked in the last ten years]:_
9.	Languages [For each language indicate proficiency: good, fair, or poor in speaking, reading, and writing]:

10. Employment Record [Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held by staff member since graduation, giving for each employment (see format here below): dates of employment, name of employing organization, positions held.]:			
From [ <i>Year</i> ]: To [ <i>Year</i> ]	: <u></u>		
Employer:			
Positions held:			
Section 3 – Technical Proposal – Stan	ndard Forms		
11. Detailed Tasks Assigned	12. Work Undertaken that Best Illustrates Capability to Handle the Tasks Assigned		
[List all tasks to be performed under this assignment]	[Among the assignments in which the staff has been involved, indicate the following information for those assignments that best illustrate staff capability to handle the tasks listed under point 11.]		
	Project Name:		
	Assignment: (Stage/s)		
	Year:		
	Location:		
	Client & Contact No.:		
,	Main project features:		
	Positions held:		
	Activities performed:		
13. Certification:			
describes myself, my qualifie	t to the best of my knowledge and belief, this CV correctly cations, and my experience. I understand that any wilful may lead to my disqualification or dismissal, if engaged.		
	Date:		
[Signature of staff member or authorized representative of the staff]  Day/Month/Year			
Full name of authorized representative	۵۰		

#### Appendix to Bid Submission Form

#### **BID SECURING DECLARATION**

(Section 45 of Act) (Regulation 37(1)(b) and 37(5))

Dat	e: <u></u>
Pro	curement Ref No.:
To:	MINISTRY OF MINES AND ENERGY Private Bag 13297 Windhoek, Namibia
	e* understand that in terms of section 45 of the Act a public entity must include in the bidding ument the requirement for a declaration as an alternative form of bid security.
I/W	e* accept that under section 45 of the Act, I/we* may be suspended or disqualified in the event of
(a)	A modification or withdrawal of a bid after the deadline for submission of bids during the period of validity;
(b)	Refusal by a bidder to accept a correction of an error appearing on the face of a bid;
(c)	Failure to sign a procurement contract in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the bidding document, should I/We* be successful bidder; or
(d)	Failure to provide security for the performance of the procurement contract if required to do so by the bidding document.
I/Wo Bido	e* understand this bid securing declaration ceases to be valid if I am/We are* not the successful der
-	ned:ed: signature of person whose name and capacity are shown]
-	acity of: icate legal capacity of person(s) signing the Bid Securing Declaration]
	ne:ert complete name of person signing the Bid Securing Declaration]
Duly	y authorized to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder]
Date	ed on day of,

Corporate Seal (where appropriate)

[Note\*: In case of a joint venture, the bid securing declaration must be in the name of all partners to the joint venture that submits the bid.]



#### Republic Of Namibia

Ministry of Labour, Industrial Relations and Employment Creation

Written undertaking in terms of section 138 of the Labour Act, 2015 and section 50(2)(D) of the Public Procurement Act, 2015

#### 3. EMPLOYERS DETAILS

Company Trade Name:
Registration Number:
Vat Number:
Industry/Sector:
Place of Business:
Physical Address:
Tell No.:
Fax No.:
Email Address:
Postal Address:
Full name of Owner/Accounting
Officer:
Email Address:

#### 2. PROCUREMENT DETAILS

Procurement Reference No.:
Procurement Description:
Anticipated Contract Duration:
•••••••••••••••
Location where work will be done, good/services will be delivered:
3. UNDERTAKING
I
of
t full name of company] hereby undertake in writing that my company will at all relevant times comply fully with the relevant provisions of the Labour Act and the Terms and Conditions of Collective Agreements as applicable.
I am fully aware that failure to abide to such shall lead to the action as stipulated in section 138 of the labour Act, 2007, which include but not limited to the cancellation of the contract/licence/grant/permit or concession.
Signature:
Date:
Seal:

Please take note:

<sup>1.</sup> A labour inspector may conduct unannounced inspections to assess the level of compliance

<sup>2.</sup> This undertaking must be displayed at the workplace where it will be readily accessible and visible by the employees rendering service(s) in relations to the goods and services being procured under this contract.

#### Section 5. Terms of Reference

#### (A) PREMBLE

These Terms of Reference describe the services required to be performed by the Consultant for the achievement of the project.

#### 5.1. INTRODUCTION

The project described in Section 5 hereunder forms part of MME's plan to utilize alternative clean and cheaper sources of electrical energy at its premises/head office. MME head office is located five (5) kilometers from the capital of Windhoek, near Eros Airport. This consultancy assignment is for the provision of engineering services for a 360kWp solar photovoltaic (PV) system which will serve two (2) purposes,

- i Provide environmentally clean, cheaper alternative source of electricity and,
- ii Provide shade for public parking area at the Head office.

#### 5.2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The engineering consultant is expected to offer a highly skilled and experienced team of experts for successful accomplishment of services in each stage of the project. The prospective consultant is expected to appoint a Project Manager for overall coordination and who shall also serve as MME's day-to-day contact.

### 5.2.1 Feasibility Study and preparation of technical design, drawings and bid documentation

During the first phase of the project, the consultant is required to provide services in line with the following scope:

- An assessment to estimate the cost, technical and economic performance of the 360kWp solar PV system along with its associated site impacts (environmental).
- Produce detailed civil/structural, electrical and mechanical designs for the PV system along with complete construction drawings of the installation and all ancillary work for permitting construction.
- Development of a bidding document for the appointment of a contractor in line with the Public Procurement Act of 2015
- Participation in the technical review of the bidder's technical offers and documents during the selection of an appropriate contractor should the Client require so.

Requirements during the first phase of the project are as follows:

- The consulting company shall produce designs with due consideration to energy efficiency and international environmentally friendly standards and norms.
- The consulting firm will be required to work closely with the MME engineering personnel during the design phase for the purpose knowledge transfer.
- The consulting company will be required to prepare all requisite documents necessary for obtaining all approvals and permits from the City of Windhoek, Electricity Control Board of Namibia and other relevant authorities.
- All drawings shall comply with the applicable standards and regulations.
- All drawings shall include their set of **design calculations and software simulations** as applicable.
- The design report shall sum up all design activities and provide the rationale for optimal designs made. Standards used must be referred to in the design report extensively. No conclusions and decisions must be made without reference to any standard.
- All bid documentation shall be prepared in accordance to the Public Procurement Act of 2015

#### 5.2.2 Engineering supervision and consultancy services during project construction

During the construction phase of the project, the consultant will be required to provide services in line with the following scope:

- Integrated and complete project management
- Technical management
- Engineering expertise placement
- Review of the procurement of materials, supplies, engineered products which is to be done by the contractor
- Subcontractor management (if any)
- Schedule management, including progress report, logistics, sequencing, and levelling
- Keeping abreast of engineering technologies to facilitate the implementation of innovative engineering solutions, as well as exchanging experiences and knowledge sharing
- Ensure the preparation of As-built drawings is done according to the real situation on site
- Day-to-day site inspection and testing of materials, site reports and financial reports
- Coordinates construction site inspection and report any incidents & concerns to the MME Project Manager and/or his representative (i.e., Project Control Engineer).
- Ensure compliance and quality supervision of implemented work and all related activities

- Receipt, review and development of comments to the contractor's technical submittal, methodology, work plan, alternatives, working drawings and any other subjects related to the contract
- Maintain project records and issue correspondence, certificates, notices and instructions on behalf of MME to the contractors as and when required
- Review and certify the request of payments submitted by the contractor with all required supporting documentation
- Issue certification of substantial completion of the required work
- Make recommendations to MME regarding costs of non-contracted work (extra work)
- Identify and advise MME on any change/variation order which may be required to complete the project
- Receive and register all samples, drawings, instructions, manuals, certifications and the correspondence submitted by the contractor
- During the Defects Liability Period (12 months) the engineering company shall follow
  up that the contractor(s) finishes the work; should any outstanding work remain at the
  date of certificate of substantial completion, the consultant is expected to monitor and
  instruct the contractor(s) that all such work of repair, amendment and/or rectification
  should be addressed.
- The consultant shall provide MME with monthly progress reports, technical issues/challenges and proposed means to solve the bottlenecks
- Submit a final report to MME upon project completion

#### 5.2.3 Counterpart Training

The consultant shall in as far as the exigencies of the project allow, train a maximum of 2 (two) or a maximum of 5 (five) qualified engineers at any one time, who will be assigned as counterparts to the consultant's staff as fulltime members of the project team. The main thrust of the training programme shall be for the trainees to gain relevant engineering experience and further their knowledge on solar system and electrical engineering designs, contract administration and site supervision. All costs such as the salary, accommodation, transport etc of these persons shall be borne by the Ministry of Mines and Energy. Any other costs which might be incurred by the consultant pertaining to the actual training of these persons e.g., computer software shall be borne by the consultant.

#### 5.3. PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

The consultant shall refer to the applicable consulting agreement for generally applicable requirements regarding his staff. The requirements set out below shall serve to supplement and amplify such requirements. All requirements applicable to the consultant's staff are automatically

applicable to any sub-consultant's staff as well.

#### 5.3.1 Project Engineer/Engineer

The consultant shall appoint a Project Engineer/leader to lead the project team and serve as the day-to-day contact for the Ministry of Mines and Energy. The project engineer must have previous experience in similar (Solar installations/design) work, a good knowledge of solar PV technology and integration of such systems to electric utility grid in line with the Distribution Grid Code of Namibia and Net Metering Rules. The project engineer must have a Bachelor's Degree in Electrical Engineering or Masters in Renewable Energy or in power systems along with project management experience and a minimum of 7 years' experience in the field of electricity distribution system design and operation including minimum proven five (3) years of experience in the field of renewable energy technology. The solar expert shouldhave good command of PV standards and proven experience on resource assessment and calculation of energy yield for solar PV projects.

#### 5.3.2 Mechanical Engineer

A relevant degree in mechanical engineering with at least 5 years of experience, out of which a minimum of 3 years of experience in ventilation system design is required.

#### 5.3.3 Civil/Structural Engineer

A relevant degree in civil engineering with at least 5 years of experience, out of which a minimum of 3 years of experience in the design of structures is required.

#### 5.4. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The consultant shall prepare all reports and documents required under the project. This includes but is not limited to:

- Monthly progress reports
- Bi-monthly progress reports
- Inception reports
- Feasibility study report
- Design reports
- Bid documentation

#### 5.5. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND DURATION

#### 5.5.1 General

Normal services shall be the services specified in these Terms of Reference and additional services

shall be services other than the normal services.

Performance of additional services shall be in accordance with agreement reached with the employer.

#### 5.5.2 Contact person

The consultant shall liaise on this project with the Project Manager as designated by the Ministry of Mines and Energy.

#### 5.5.3 Expected project duration

The project comprises of two phase, namely:

- Stage 1: Structural integrity study, detailed design and bid documentation.
- Stage 2: Contract Administration and site supervision.

It is anticipated that the detailed design, preparation of bid documentation and preparation of contract documents will take approximately 3 months.

The consultant will draw up his own proposal for time schedule but shall make due allowance for the time required by the Ministry of Mines and Energy to assess and approve documents submitted by the consultant.

The following schedule can be used as a guide:

#### **IMPLEMENTATION TIME SCHEDULE (Example)**

SEQUENCE	ACTIVITY	TARGET DATE (Months)
A	Effective Date of Contract	M (Contract signing date)
В	Commencement of Work by Consultant	$M + \frac{1}{2}$
С	Inception Report – Structure assessment	M + 1
D	Draft Design Report and Draft Drawings	M +1½
F	Draft Bid Documents	$M + 2\frac{1}{2}$
Н	Final Design Report, Final Drawings, Final Bid Documents and Call for Bids	M + 3

The second phase of the project is estimated to last for six (6) calendar months but will be entirely dependent on the work plan of the prospective contractor.

#### 5.6. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL

The financial proposal submitted by the consultant shall show the consulting engineer's quotation to carry out the feasibility study, preliminary design, detailed design, bid documentation according to this Terms of Reference. The quotation for the first phase of the project shall be fixed, all inclusive lump sum adjusted as stipulated herein paid in instalments in arrears. The lump sum shall be subdivided as follows:

- No advanced payment of costs at detailed design stage shall be due on award of contract
- Interim lump sum payment after submission of the Inception/Preliminary design report
- Interim sum payment after submission of the detailed design
- Interim lump sum payment after having submitted the final bid documents for the construction of the solar PV system

The quotation for the second phase of the project shall be time bound. The consultant shall therefore submit in their financial proposal a rate for carrying out works under phase 2 of the project.

#### 5.7. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

#### 5.7.1 General

The consultant shall submit his detailed technical and **financial proposal (if so required)** in two (2) separate envelopes.

#### 5.7.2 The Project Team

This technical proposal shall include a description of the organization and structure of the project team. The experience and knowledge of the local conditions of the qualified engineers and technicians should also be mentioned.

A Man-day schedule shall be prepared for this project to show the composition of the team and the input of the individuals during the particular project stages.

Names of qualified engineers and technicians and other professionals shall be given. Where no names are provided, these shall be considered as not yet available within the firm or consortium and are yet to be appointed. For all other staff, the number of persons according to their job description shall be shown.

The Man Day Schedule shall also provide the persons' position in the team. In addition, the schedule shall be divided into activities, namely preliminary design, PV system sizing, bidding

procedure etc.

#### 5.7.3 Personnel Qualifications

A schedule shall be prepared showing the academic qualifications of all engineers, technicians, other professional staff, membership of professional institutions, years of experience in the field to be engaged in on this project, years of experience in Namibia and citizenship.

Curriculum vitae of all engineers, technicians and persons of other professional occupations providing the required information shall be bound separately and attached to the technical proposal.

#### 5.7.4 Programme

A general programme for the project shall be submitted within (2) weeks after signing of the contract. This work programme refer to the proposed steps of work during the different stages of the project (specification, Detailing of Intended Work, Description of Tasks). An overview shall be given in bar chart form indicating the particular project steps and the involved staff.

#### 5.8. AGREEMENT

The execution of the project will be governed by a formal consulting contract between the Ministry of Mines and Energy and the Consultant. This agreement shall take the form agreed to and approved by the Ministry of Mines and Energy. The consultant shall produce three (3) copies of the consulting contract completed and signed within fourteen (14) days of the date of appointment.

The financial and technical proposals, once approved by the Ministry of Mines and Energy, shall form part of the contract and be binding on both parties.

#### Section 6. Standard Contract – Time Based

### SAMPLE CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES SMALL ASSIGNMENTS TIME-BASED PAYMENTS

#### CONTRACT No. [Insert]

THIS CONTRACT ("Contract") is entered into this [insert starting date of assignment], by and between [insert Client's name] ("the Client") having its principal place of business at [insert Client's address], and [insert Consultant's name] ("the Consultant") having its principal office located at [insert Consultant's address<sup>6</sup>].

WHEREAS, the Client wishes to have the Consultant performing the services hereinafter referred to, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant is willing to perform these services, NOW

THEREFORE THE PARTIES hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Services (i) The Consultant shall perform the services specified in Annex A, "Terms of Reference and Scope of Services," which is made an integral part of this Contract ("the Services").
  - (ii) The Consultant shall provide the reports listed in Annex B, "Consultant's Reporting Obligations," within the time periods listed in such Annex, and the personnel listed in Annex C, "Cost Estimate of Services, List of Personnel and Schedule of Rates" to perform the Services.
- 2. Term The Consultant shall perform the Services during the period commencing [insert start date] and continuing through [insert completion date] or any other period as may be subsequently agreed by the parties in writing.

#### 3. Payment A. Ceiling

For Services rendered pursuant to Annex A, the Client shall pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed a ceiling of *[insert ceiling amount]*. This amount has been established based on the understanding that it includes all of the Consultant's costs and profits as well as any tax obligation that may be imposed on the Consultant. The payments made under the Contract consist of the Consultant's remuneration as defined in sub-paragraph B below and of the reimbursable expenditures as defined in subparagraph C below.

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Avoid use of "P.O. Box" address

#### B. Remuneration

The Client shall pay the Consultant for Services rendered at the rate(s) per man/month spent<sup>7</sup> (**or** per day spent **or** per hour spent, subject to a maximum of eight hours per day) in accordance with the rates agreed and specified in Annex C, "Cost Estimate of Services, List of Personnel and Schedule of Rates."

#### C. <u>Reimbursables</u>

The Client shall pay the Consultant for reimbursable expenses, which shall consist of and be limited to:

- (i) normal and customary expenditures for official travel, accommodation, printing, and telephone charges; official travel will be reimbursed at the cost of less than first class travel and will need to be authorized by the Client's coordinator;
- (ii) such other expenses as approved in advance by the Client's coordinator.<sup>8</sup>

#### D. Payment Conditions

Payment shall be made in Namibia Dollar (N\$) not later than 30 days following submission of invoices in duplicate to the Coordinator designated in paragraph 4.

Payments shall be made to Consultant's bank account

#### [insert banking details.]

### 4. Project Administration

#### Coordinator

The Client designates the Procurement Management Unit (PMU) for the coordination of activities under the Contract, for receiving and approving invoices for payment, and for acceptance of the deliverables by the Client.

#### B. Timesheets

During the course of their work under this Contract, including field work, the Consultant's employees providing services under this Contract may be required to complete timesheets or any other document used to identify time spent, as well as expenses incurred, as instructed by the Project Coordinator.

A.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Select the applicable rate and delete the others.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Specific expenses can be added as an item (iii) in paragraph 3.C.

#### C. Records and Accounts

The Consultant shall keep, and shall cause its Sub-Consultants to keep, accurate and systematic records and accounts in respect of the Services, which will clearly identify all charges and expenses. The Client reserves the right to audit, or to nominate a reputable accounting firm to audit, the Consultant's records relating to amounts claimed under this Contract during its term and any extension, and for a period of three months thereafter.

### 5. Performance Standard

The Consultant undertakes to perform the Services with the highest standards of professional and ethical competence and integrity. The Consultant shall promptly replace any employees assigned under this Contract that the Client considers unsatisfactory.

### 6. Inspections and Auditing

The Consultant shall permit, and shall cause its Sub-Consultants to permit, the Client and/or persons or auditors appointed by the Client to inspect and/or audit its accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services and performance of the Contract. Any failure to comply with this obligation may constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination and/or the imposition of sanctions by the Government of Namibia (including without limitation a determination of ineligibility) in accordance with prevailing sanctions procedures.

#### 7. Confidentiality

The Consultants shall not, during the term of this Contract and within two years after its expiration, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Services, this Contract or the Client's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Client.

### 8. Ownership of Material

Any studies, reports or other material, graphic, software or otherwise, prepared by the Consultant for the Client under the Contract shall belong to and remain the property of the Client. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software.<sup>9</sup>

#### 9. Consultant Not to be Engaged in Certain Activities

The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultants and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than consulting services that would not give rise to a conflict of interest) resulting from or closely related to the Consulting Services for the preparation or implementation of the Project.

#### 10. Insurance

The Consultant will be responsible for taking out any appropriate insurance coverage.

#### 11. Assignment

The Consultant shall not assign this Contract or Subcontract any portion of it without the Client's prior written consent.

### 12. Law Governing Contract and

The Contract shall be governed by the laws of Namibia, and the language of the Contract shall be English.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Restrictions about the future use of these documents and software, if any, shall be specified at the end of Article 8.

#### Language

- 13. Dispute Any dispute arising out of this Contract, which cannot be amicably Resolution <sup>10</sup> settled between the parties, shall be referred to adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the laws of Namibia.
- 14. Termination The Client may terminate this Contract with at least ten (10) working days prior written notice to the Consultant after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Clause:
  - (a) If the Consultant does not remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations under the Contract within seven (7) working days after being notified, or within any further period as the Client may have subsequently approved in writing;
  - (b) If the Consultant becomes insolvent or bankrupt;
  - (c) If the Consultant, in the judgment of the Client, has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices (as defined in the prevailing sanctions procedures) in competing for or in performing the Contract.
  - (d) If the Client, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract.

FOR THE CLIENT	FOR THE CONSULTANT
Signed by	Signed by
Title:	Title:

#### LIST OF ANNEXES

Annex A: Terms of References (ToR's) Section 5. Terms of Reference on page 56.

Annex B: Consultant's Reporting Obligations

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> In the case of a Contract entered into with a foreign Consultant, the following provision may be substituted for paragraph 13: "Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract or the breach, termination or invalidity thereof, shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the UNCITRAL Arbitration Rules as at present in force."

#### ANNEX B

#### Annex B: Consultant's Reporting Obligations

- Site Supervision and meeting minutes
   Site supervision shall be done at least once a month and meeting minutes shall be compiled and distributed to Client.
- Other reporting forms
   Please refer to deliverables found in the Terms of Reference.

